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Dear Sirs, 

I am the CEO of the Australian Recording Industry Association (ARIA) and refer to your letter of 20 December 2006 regarding the commencement of negotiations on a bilateral free trade agreement between Australia and Japan.  I apologise for the delay in providing this submission.

About ARIA

ARIA is the peak body representing the interests of the Australian recording industry.  It has over 100 members ranging from the local arms of the major multinational corporations (EMI, Sony BMG, Universal and Warners), to significant Australian distributors such as Shock Records as well as many small Australian labels and artist owned labels.  One of its key functions is to represent and advance the interests of the industry at Government level.  As you are no doubt aware, we were frequently consulted during the negotiation of the US/Australia Free Trade Agreement.  

Specific Submissions

For present purposes, we will confine our submissions to a short outline of each of the matters that we consider warrant attention in these negotiations.  Of course, we would be happy to provide more detail as and when that is appropriate and would, of course, also be happy to attend any meetings with you to discuss these matters.

We consider that the following matters require specific attention in the negotiations:

1.       Introduction of a Public Performance Right. Japan does not grant to sound recording copyright owners any right to control or to be remunerated for the performance of sound recordings ‘in public’, such as the playing of recorded music in halls, bars and restaurants.  This puts them at odds with much of the western world and, more specifically, the regime that exists in Australia.

2.       Extend term of protection for sound recordings to 70 years. Japan has extended copyright term of protection for films to 70 years, while leaving the term of protection for sound recordings and other works at 50 years from publication. The term of protection for sound recordings should be extended. 

3.       Extend exclusive right for rentals. Japanese law currently provides for only a limited rental right - an exclusive right for one year and thereafter a right to remuneration. It is critical for right holders to have an exclusive right for rentals for the whole period of protection, rather than the current one-year period, in order to prevent unrestricted copying of rented phonograms, especially in light of the broadly drafted private copying exception. 

4.       Narrow the scope of the private copying exception. The applicable private copying exception is overly broad: it permits copying for personal use, family use “and other similar uses within a limited circle”, does not specify that copying must be from a legitimately purchased copy and does not explicitly restrict further distribution of privately made copies as in the case under Australian law.. 

5.       Strengthen enforcement provisions: In the absence of an additional damages regime similar to that which applies in Australia, Japanese law should implement a statutory damages provision, allowing right holders to opt for pre-established damages in any stage of the civil proceedings. Also, a statutory presumption on ownership of copyright, that permits a court to presume facts about ownership from the standard labelling used on sound recording, is needed. Again, this is already a feature of Australian law.

6.       TPM protection should be clarified and strengthened. Japan’s laws relating to circumvention of TPMs should be amended to clearly cover measures that control access (rather than copying). Also, the law should introduce civil liability for the act of circumvention and for dealing with circumvention devices.

Please do not hesitate to contact us if you require any further information or clarification.  In the meantime, we look forward to ongoing consultations as the negotiations progress.

Yours sincerely, 

Stephen Peach

CEO
